
TOWN OF PALM BEACH 
Information for Town Council Meeting on:        May 15, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

To:   Mayor and Town Council  

 

Via: Kirk Blouin, Town Manager 

 

From:  Wayne Bergman, MCP, LEED® AP, Director of Planning, Zoning and Building 

      

Re: ZON-22-132 (ARC-22-200) 165 Bradley Place Condition of Declaration of Use Agreement 

 

Date: April 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  

 

Pursuant to the Declaration of Use Agreement (DOUA) between the Town of Palm Beach and the Alef 

Preschool, dated July 2023 and recorded on August 7, 2023 in the Palm Beach County Clerk of the 

Court, the applicant was instructed to return to Town Council on May 15, 2024 to review operations. 

Staff recommends that the Town Council consider the findings of staff following approximately six 

months of operations.   

 

GENERAL INFORMATION         

 

On December 14, 2022, the Town Council approved exterior changes to the one-story building located 

at 165 Bradley Place and the conversion of a portion of the associated surface parking lot to a child play 

area. The applicant was granted a parking variance as the site modifications resulted in the elimination 

of five parking spaces. 

 

In association with the project approval, a DOUA was required that specified sixteen conditions of 

approval. As previously stated, one of the requirements was to return to the Town Council on May 15, 

2024 to review operations. As part of the staff review for compliance, possible public works, police and 

code issues were researched, inspections of the property were made, and an in-person meeting was held 

with the applicant to verify school logistics and activities. As noted in the attached emails, there have 

been no reported incidents at the school and the operations comply with the conditions of approval in the 

DOUA. 

 

Attachment:   Recorded Declaration of Use Agreement July 2023 

 Emails from the Police Department, Code Enforcement, and Public Works  

 

cc: James Murphy, Assistant Planning Director 

 Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew, Planner III, AICP 

























 

From: Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew <jhofmeister@TownOfPalmBeach.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 10:57 AM
To: Nicholas Caristo <NCaristo@PalmBeachPolice.com>; Paul Brazil
<PBrazil@TownofPalmBeach.com>; Benjamin Alma <BAlma@PalmBeachPolice.com>
Cc: Wayne Bergman <wbergman@TownOfPalmBeach.com>
Subject: Alef Preschool operations
 
Good morning all,
 
Pursuant to the attached Declaration of Use Agreement (DOUA) between the Town of Palm
Beach and the Alef Preschool, dated July 2023 and recorded on August 7, 2023 in the Palm
Beach County Clerk of the Court, the applicant was instructed to return to Town Council on
May 15, 2024 to review operations. In preparation for that meeting, can you all check your
records to see if they have any complaints or issues prior to the Town Council meeting?
 
Thank you!
 
 
The Town of Palm Beach PZB Department is excited to launch its new
permitting and licensing software!  EPL (Enterprise Permitting & Licensing)
allows applicants to apply for permits, submit plans, request licenses, make
payments, and track application progress on an online portal customized for
the Town.  This includes applications for any of the development review
boards. Click here for a link to register for access to this system via the online
portal.
 
Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew, AICP, LCAM
Planner III
Town of Palm Beach
Planning, Zoning, & Building
360 S. County Road
Palm Beach, FL  33480
Office Phone: 561-227-6406 Cell Phone: 561-573-7907
www.townofpalmbeach.com
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From: Benjamin Alma
To: Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew
Subject: FW: Alef Preschool operations
Date: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 11:25:16 AM
Attachments: image001.png

FYI
 
From: Carla Marcote <CMarcote@PalmBeachPolice.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 11:21 AM
To: Benjamin Alma <BAlma@PalmBeachPolice.com>
Subject: RE: Alef Preschool operations
 
No code enforcement violations after school opened.
 
Respectfully,
 
Carla Marcote
Carla Marcote
Code Enforcement Specialist
Palm Beach Police Department
561-227-6388

 
From: Benjamin Alma <BAlma@PalmBeachPolice.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 11:17 AM
To: Carla Marcote <CMarcote@PalmBeachPolice.com>
Subject: FW: Alef Preschool operations
 
FYI
 
From: Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew <jhofmeister@TownOfPalmBeach.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 10:58 AM
To: Nicholas Caristo <NCaristo@PalmBeachPolice.com>; Paul Brazil
<PBrazil@TownofPalmBeach.com>; Benjamin Alma <BAlma@PalmBeachPolice.com>
Cc: Wayne Bergman <wbergman@TownOfPalmBeach.com>
Subject: Alef Preschool operations
 
Good morning all,
 
Pursuant to the attached Declaration of Use Agreement (DOUA) between the Town of Palm
Beach and the Alef Preschool, dated July 2023 and recorded on August 7, 2023 in the Palm
Beach County Clerk of the Court, the applicant was instructed to return to Town Council on
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From: Nicholas Caristo
To: Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew; Paul Brazil; Benjamin Alma
Cc: Wayne Bergman
Subject: RE: Alef Preschool operations
Date: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 12:07:44 PM

Good afternoon Jennifer,
 
Since its opening in 2023, the PD has not received any complaints or concerns regarding
Alef Preschool. Let me know if you need anything else.
 
Nicholas Caristo
Chief of Police
 
Palm Beach Police Department
345 South County Road
Palm Beach, FL 33480
561-838-5454
 
From: Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew <jhofmeister@TownOfPalmBeach.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 10:58 AM
To: Nicholas Caristo <NCaristo@PalmBeachPolice.com>; Paul Brazil
<PBrazil@TownofPalmBeach.com>; Benjamin Alma <BAlma@PalmBeachPolice.com>
Cc: Wayne Bergman <wbergman@TownOfPalmBeach.com>
Subject: Alef Preschool operations
 
Good morning all,
 
Pursuant to the attached Declaration of Use Agreement (DOUA) between the Town of Palm
Beach and the Alef Preschool, dated July 2023 and recorded on August 7, 2023 in the Palm
Beach County Clerk of the Court, the applicant was instructed to return to Town Council on
May 15, 2024 to review operations. In preparation for that meeting, can you all check your
records to see if they have any complaints or issues prior to the Town Council meeting?
 
Thank you!
 
 
The Town of Palm Beach PZB Department is excited to launch its new
permitting and licensing software!  EPL (Enterprise Permitting & Licensing)
allows applicants to apply for permits, submit plans, request licenses, make
payments, and track application progress on an online portal customized for
the Town.  This includes applications for any of the development review
boards. Click here for a link to register for access to this system via the online
portal.
 
Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew, AICP, LCAM
Planner III
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From: Jennifer Bell
To: Paul Brazil; Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew
Cc: Wayne Bergman
Subject: RE: Alef Preschool operations
Date: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 2:51:24 PM

Paul and Jennifer, 
My team does not recall receiving any complaints regarding the Alef Preschool.  I also
searched our Lucity workorder system and found no record of any complaints regarding the
Alef Preschool (165 Bradley Place).  
 
Jennifer – if you haven’t already, you may want to double check with our PB Police
Communications Unit at ext. #5454 or code enforcement at ext. #7080 to have them check
their records for possible noise complaints, etc.
 
 
Jennifer Bell
Office Manager
 
Town of Palm Beach
Public Works Department
951 Okeechobee Road, Suite A
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Main Office:  561-838-5440
Direct:  561-227-7012
Fax:  561-835-4691
 

From: Paul Brazil <PBrazil@TownofPalmBeach.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 2:23 PM
To: Jennifer Bell <jbell@TownofPalmBeach.com>
Cc: Wayne Bergman <wbergman@TownOfPalmBeach.com>; Jennifer Hofmeister-Drew
<jhofmeister@TownOfPalmBeach.com>
Subject: Re: Alef Preschool operations
 
Jennifer,
 
Has your staff received any complaints about the operation of the preschool referenced
below.
 
Paul
 
 
 
​H. Paul Brazil, PE
Director of Public Works
Town of Palm Beach
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